# Oracle® Hospitality mymicros.net Release Notes

Release 8.4.3

August 2016



Copyright © 2001, 2016, Oracle and/or its affiliates. All rights reserved.

This software and related documentation are provided under a license agreement containing restrictions on use and disclosure and are protected by intellectual property laws. Except as expressly permitted in your license agreement or allowed by law, you may not use, copy, reproduce, translate, broadcast, modify, license, transmit, distribute, exhibit, perform, publish, or display any part, in any form, or by any means. Reverse engineering, disassembly, or decompilation of this software, unless required by law for interoperability, is prohibited.

The information contained herein is subject to change without notice and is not warranted to be error-free. If you find any errors, please report them to us in writing.

If this software or related documentation is delivered to the U.S. Government or anyone licensing it on behalf of the U.S. Government, then the following notice is applicable:

U.S. GOVERNMENT END USERS: Oracle programs, including any operating system, integrated software, any programs installed on the hardware, and/or documentation, delivered to U.S. Government end users are "commercial computer software" pursuant to the applicable Federal Acquisition Regulation and agency-specific supplemental regulations. As such, use, duplication, disclosure, modification, and adaptation of the programs, including any operating system, integrated software, any programs installed on the hardware, and/or documentation, shall be subject to license terms and license restrictions applicable to the programs. No other rights are granted to the U.S. Government.

This software or hardware is developed for general use in a variety of information management applications. It is not developed or intended for use in any inherently dangerous applications, including applications that may create a risk of personal injury. If you use this software or hardware in dangerous applications, then you shall be responsible to take all appropriate fail-safe, backup, redundancy, and other measures to ensure its safe use. Oracle Corporation and its affiliates disclaim any liability for any damages caused by use of this software or hardware in dangerous applications.

Oracle and Java are registered trademarks of Oracle and/or its affiliates. Other names may be trademarks of their respective owners.

Intel and Intel Xeon are trademarks or registered trademarks of Intel Corporation. All SPARC trademarks are used under license and are trademarks or registered trademarks of SPARC International, Inc. AMD, Opteron, the AMD logo, and the AMD Opteron logo are trademarks or registered trademarks of Advanced Micro Devices. UNIX is a registered trademark of The Open Group.

This software or hardware and documentation may provide access to or information on content, products, and services from third parties. Oracle Corporation and its affiliates are not responsible for and expressly disclaim all warranties of any kind with respect to third-party content, products, and services. Oracle Corporation and its affiliates will not be responsible for any loss, costs, or damages incurred due to your access to or use of third-party content, products, or services.

### **Contents**

Pr	·eface	5
	Audience	5
	Documentation	5
	Revision History	5
1	Features and Updates	6
	mymicros.net.	6
	Added support for validating user-generated exports during execution	6
	Added support to receive user feedback on mymicros.net	6
	You can now use special characters for user passwords	6
	Added support to suppress Net Sales from the portal	
	Added support for Windows Server 2012 R2	7
	Added support to limit the date range in the calendar year	7
	myinventory	7
	Count type Period Close now Full Count	
	Added support to include new costs centers in active C/S Filter	
	Orders/Book Revenue label renamed to Default View Filter	
	Non-selectable delivery dates are now grayed out	
	Added support to sort Central Ordering records using column headers	
	Column headers in Ordering renamed	
	Added support to select the To Cost Center when creating a Transfer From Using List	
	Cost centers are now alphabetized in Menu Item Auto Link	
	Added support to create Requisition/Transfer lists for cost centers not in a user's C/S	
	filter	
	Nutrient Catalog licensing introduced  MIA2 Scheduler renamed to Scheduler	
	Support to delete multiple recipe ingredients added	
	Ability to add items/recipes to inventory count extended to Item Groups and Storage	9
	Location pages	9
	Added support to enforce manual inventory date selection	
	Added support to define Vendor Account number format	
	Added support to define negative quantities for Menu Item Linking	10
	myinventory supported on Oracle MICROS mTablet R-Series	
	Added support to create event menu plans	
	Recipe name and quantity now visible on Transfer From previews and printouts	
	Delivery Date selection in the Forecast Out-of-Stock now restricted	
	mylabor	10
	TCA now supported by RES running on MICROS Workstation 6 with Windows 8.1	10
2	Self-Hosting Features and Updates	12
	mymicros.net	
	Added support to self-unlock mymicros.net account	12
	myinventory	12

4	Resolved Issues	14
	Mobile Operating Systems (inMotion Only)	13
	Mobile Handheld Devices (Inventory Management Only)	13
	Software	13
	Web Browsers	13
	Operating Systems	
3	System Requirements, Supported Systems, and Compatibility	13
	I9 Validation enhanced to support random key zero	12
	mylabor	12
	Added support for myinventory Database Maintenance in 64-bit operating Oracle client	•

### **Preface**

This document describes the features and changes included in this Oracle Hospitality eBusiness release, which is comprised of:

- mymicros.net
- iCare
- myInventory
- myLabor
- inMotion

### **Audience**

This document is for all eBusiness users.

### **Documentation**

Oracle Hospitality product documentation is available on the Oracle Help Center at <a href="http://docs.oracle.com/en/industries/hospitality/">http://docs.oracle.com/en/industries/hospitality/</a>

### **Revision History**

Date	Description of Change
April 2015	Initial publication.
August 2016	<ul> <li>Reformatted and removed references to the Reference Library.</li> </ul>

Preface 5

### 1 Features and Updates

This chapter describes the features and updates contained in this release. There are no new features or updates for the iCare module.

### mymicros.net

### Added support for validating user-generated exports during execution

CR ID #: NA

TP ID #: 82999

The Start Date, End Date, and Location fields in Import Export Maintenance are now validated before you send the export. You now see a more descriptive confirmation message indicating the number of locations and the date range for which the export is run based on your selection.

For example, the Export\_1 runs for 2 location(s) over the range of 01/01/2015 to 02/05/2015.

### Added support to receive user feedback on mymicros.net

CR ID #: NA

TP ID #: 80878

If configured by the hosting administrator, you can now help improve mymicros.net by clicking the Help improve mymicros.net link located at the bottom-left corner of the portal and providing your feedback.

### You can now use special characters for user passwords

CR ID #: NA

TP ID #: 78731

You can now use special characters in user passwords for all mymicros.net products and modules. (Formerly SCR 10757)

6 Features and Updates

### Added support to suppress Net Sales from the portal

CR ID #: NA TP ID # 77620

You can now suppress selected menu items from the Net Sales Totals of daily sales and fixed period sales from within the portal. Additionally, if Suppress From Net Sales Total is enabled for a menu item class in RES, the sales totals of the menu items belonging do that class no longer post to the fixed period aggregations in mymicros.net. (Formerly SCR 10757)

### Added support for Windows Server 2012 R2

CR ID #: NA TP ID #: 73739

All mymicros.net, mylabor, and iCare databases and modules are now supported on Windows Server 2012 R2.

### Added support to limit the date range in the calendar year

CR ID #: NA TP ID #: 71375

You now have the ability to limit the number of months that users can access in the reporting calendar for an organization.

### myinventory

### **Count type Period Close now Full Count**

CR ID: # NA TP ID #: 29684

Count type Period Close is now referred to as Full Count in the Suspended Inventory and Booked Inventory modules.

### Added support to include new costs centers in active C/S Filter

CR ID #: NA TP ID #: 29640

New cost centers that you create are now added to the cost center filter if the C/S Filter is active.

#### Orders/Book Revenue label renamed to Default View Filter

CR ID #: NA TP ID #: 29634

The Orders/Book Revenue label in myinventory | Maintenance | User Management has been renamed to Default View Filter.

### Non-selectable delivery dates are now grayed out

CR ID #: NA TP ID #: 29613

All non-selectable dates in the Delivery Date date editor are now grayed out in the following modules:

- Order by List
- Order by Order Cycle
- Order by Vendor
- Suggested Order by Vendor
- Blank Order

### Added support to sort Central Ordering records using column headers

CR ID #: NA TP ID #: 29610

You can now sort orders in the Central Ordering module by vendor, cost center, document, delivery date, item count, total, status, or order date by clicking the relevant column header.

Supplier and Order Name columns are now named Vendor and Document, respectively.

### Column headers in Ordering renamed

CR ID #: NA TP ID #: 29609

The Orders/List header in the Suspended Orders module and the PO No. header in the Pending Orders and Booked Orders module are now named Document.

# Added support to select the To Cost Center when creating a Transfer From Using List

CR ID #: NA TP ID #: 29362

When creating a Transfer From Using List request, you can now select any location or store in your C/S Filter as the To Cost Center. Additionally, the From Cost Center filter now shows all cost centers that the selected To Cost Center can receive merchandise from in addition to those in your C/S Filter.

### Cost centers are now alphabetized in Menu Item Auto Link

CR ID #: NA TP ID #: 29361

In the Menu item Auto Link | Assign Cost Center module, cost centers in the Source and Assigned lists now appear in alphabetical order.

### Added support to create Requisition/Transfer lists for cost centers not in a user's C/S filter

CR ID #: NA TP ID #: 29360

You can now give users the ability to create, edit, and save Requisition and Transfer lists for cost centers that are not in their C/S Filter but are linked to their default cost center using the List Management module. This enables you to allow the transfer of products to and from outlet cost centers without affecting the commissary cost center.

### **Nutrient Catalog licensing introduced**

CR ID #: NA TP ID #: 29262

A license confirmation prompt is now shown if a nutrient catalog requires an external license when importing or using that nutrient in items, recipes, or other relevant modules.

#### MIA2 Scheduler renamed to Scheduler

CR ID #: NA TP ID #: 29174

The MIA2 Scheduler is now referred to as Scheduler. All references to the MIA2 Scheduler in the application have been updated to this new title.

### Support to delete multiple recipe ingredients added

CR ID #: 35579 TP ID #: 29146

You can now delete multiple ingredients of a recipe simultaneously through the Recipe Detail page.

# Ability to add items/recipes to inventory count extended to Item Groups and Storage Location pages

CR ID #: 35578 TP ID #: 29145

You can now add items and recipes to an inventory and save the inventory count as a list from the Item Groups Detail and the Storage Location Detail pages without navigating to the Count Summary page.

### Added support to enforce manual inventory date selection

CR ID #: 35486 TP ID #: 29078

You can now enforce users to manually select the inventory date when creating an inventory count.

### Added support to define Vendor Account number format

CR ID #: NA TP ID#: 28716

You can now predefine a format for the Vendor Account field in Master Data | Vendors | Edit Vendor tab and validate the entry.

### Added support to define negative quantities for Menu Item Linking

CR ID #: 35125 TP ID #: 28709

Menu items linked to an inventory item or recipe can now have a negative quantity.

### myinventory supported on Oracle MICROS mTablet R-Series

CR ID #: NA TP ID #: 28691

myinventory is now supported on Oracle MICROS mTablet R-Series mobile point-of-sale (POS) workstations.

### Added support to create event menu plans

CR ID #: NA TP ID #: 27332

This feature gives you the ability to create menu plans for your cost centers.

## Recipe name and quantity now visible on Transfer From previews and printouts

CR ID #: 34245 TP ID #: 26397

PDF previews and printouts of Transfer From requests now show the recipe name and the quantity of recipes requested for transfer and its associated ingredients sorted beneath it. This allows you to identify from the printout if the items should be transferred based on the recipe or the items.

For more information, see the v8.4.3 Release Notes myinventory Reference Library document.

### Delivery Date selection in the Forecast Out-of-Stock now restricted

CR ID #: NA TP ID #: 20641

The Delivery Date date editor in the Forecast Out-of-Stock module now only shows the current date and 13 days in the future as selectable fields. All other days that are out of this range are now grayed out.

### mylabor

## TCA now supported by RES running on MICROS Workstation 6 with Windows 8.1

CR ID #: NA TP ID #: 68516

With this release, the Enterprise Time Clock Application (TCA) is supported by RES v5.0 and above running on MICROS Workstation 6 with Windows 8.1.

### 2 Self-Hosting Features and Updates

### mymicros.net

### Added support to self-unlock mymicros.net account

CR ID #: NA TP ID #: 82543

You can now give users the ability to self-unlock their suspended portal accounts from their desktops and mobile devices without the intervention of the system administrator. Additionally, you can now:

- Configure the e-mail address of your system administrator for user reference.
- Reset your forgotten password and change your expired password using the mymicros.net mobile site.

### myinventory

# Added support for myinventory Database Maintenance in 64-bit operating systems and Oracle client

CR ID #: 31130 SCR ID #: 20285

The myinventory Database Maintenance client, formerly known as myinventory Database Updater, now supports a 64-bit operating system with 64-bit Oracle client/server.

### mylabor

### 19 Validation enhanced to support random key zero

CR ID #: NA TP ID #: 81200

19 Validation now validates 19 Codes that are generated using the random key zero.

# 3 System Requirements, Supported Systems, and Compatibility

### **Operating Systems**

- Microsoft Windows 8.1
- Microsoft Windows 8
- Microsoft Windows 7
- Microsoft Windows Vista

#### **Web Browsers**

- Microsoft Internet Explorer 11
  - You may need to use the compatibility view for Interactive Reports, Dashboards, and Ad Hoc.
- Microsoft Internet Explorer 10
  - You may need to use the compatibility view for Interactive Reports, Dashboards, and Ad Hoc.
- Microsoft Internet Explorer 9
- Microsoft Internet Explorer 8
- Mozilla Firefox

#### **Software**

- Adobe Acrobat Reader
- Microsoft Excel 2007 or later

### **Mobile Handheld Devices (Inventory Management Only)**

- Motorola MC70
- Motorola MC55A
- Motorola MC55
- Motorola MC40

### **Mobile Operating Systems (inMotion Only)**

- Apple iOS 6.0 or later
- Android 4.x or later

This table describes resolved issues for this release.

Product	CRID	TPID	Description
mymicros.net	35518	69812	You can now manually align cashier definitions using
			Run Alignment without any error.
	35485	68976	The menu item Name2 field in RES   POS Configurator
			no longer gets populated with the value of Name 1 if
			Name 2 is not defined when a new menu item is
			created in the EMS.
	35472	68537	The Sales Comparison by Day Report now shows last
			year's totals for revenue centers that are no longer
			active this year as well as the current year's totals for
			revenue centers that were not active last year.
	35421	67107	You can now sort the Purchase History Report by the
			invoice date.
	35351	64144	Safe Counts are now posted to the database.
	35335	62182	A more descriptive error message is now shown when
			users attempt to delete an organization level that is
			used.
	35072	52536	The Sales Comparison by Location Report now shows
			Last Year's Sales for revenue centers that are no longer
			active or no longer take in sales
	35053	51116	Adhoc Report Mail no longer randomly fails to
			generate and send reports at the scheduled frequency.
	35039	49587	Required condiments now post accurately as
			condiments and not as combo items with condiments.
	34981	47983	The second <b>Location 1</b> field in <i>Report Mail</i>   <i>Location</i>
			Comparison Report has been renamed to <b>Location 2</b> .
			Additionally, Report Mail now saves your <b>Location 2</b>
			selection and successfully sends the Location
			Comparison Report to the specified recipients.
	35961	82499	The Recipe Cost Report now excludes the cost of
			production items and only uses the cost of the actual
			ingredients to calculate the cost of a recipe.
iCare	35345	63893	"iCare Segmentation now returns all results when
			searching for customers using the following attributes
			regardless of the letter case of your search criteria:
			<ul> <li>Gender</li> </ul>
			• Prefix
			• Suffix
			• UserAlpha1
			<ul> <li>UserAlpha2</li> </ul>
	35343	63854	1 1
			returns the correct amount to redeem for rounded
			menu items.

Product	CRID	TPID	Description
	35026	49227	As Award programs do not expire, the Valid Until Type field in Programs   Gift or Debit/Credit/Award Programs is now grayed out if Award is selected as the program type.
	34994	48345	In Receipt Configuration, users are now prevented from configuring header lines with the special characters: lesser than (<), greater than (>), and ampersand (&).
	35350	83417	Eligibility Rules have been fixed and now customers only receive the Signup Anniversary Award on the following year's signup anniversary date. Previously, customers received the award immediately on the first transaction.
myinventory	36469	30026	When exporting invoices to the Back Office Interface (B/O) now all rows in the invoice are now flagged as exported.
	36216	29890	You no longer see an error when attempting to import a B2B receipt with vendor purchase items that receive in base units.
	36179	29868	Performance of the Transfer on Sales job is improved through indexing with this release.
	NA	29860	Unbooking an end of day (EOD) count when multiple EOD counts exist for the same day no longer returns the wrong inventory stock-on- hand and theoretical values for that day.
	NA	29847	The importing of B2B invoices is improved with this release.
	36080	29761	B2B Solutions now processes invoices with orders that have an apostrophe or a single quotation mark in their name (for example, Rick's Order) without any error.
	36037	29702	The Transfer on Sales job no longer transfers items that are not assigned to a Depletion Cost Center.
	36011	29666	Users can now copy the linking of a menu item linked to multiple order types to all cost centers without any error.
	NA	29662	Ordering no longer creates duplicate entries for sales forecasts when a rejected forecast is reapproved.
	NA	29508	Users are now prompted to save changes made to item categories before navigating away from Master Data > Items > Categories.
	35962	29504	myinventory now trims item names to 30 characters on ASCII e-mail orders.
	35932	29480	The Calculated Theo Usage Report now shows the base unit instead of the store unit.
	NA	29367	The Add Receipts(s) dialog box now populates each time Add Receipt(s) is clicked when adding receipts to a blank Invoice.

Product	CRID	TPID	Description
	NA	29365	Vendor groups assigned to vendors can no longer be
			deleted and/or deactivated.
	NA	29363	When attempting to deactivate an over group linked to
			a major group, a message is now shown to users
			indicating that the over group cannot be deactivated.
	35867	29355	If a cost center does not use localization, the default
			booked waste report is now printed.
	35862	29353	Users can no longer modify the device number.
			Previously, the organization sync failed if the device
			number was manually changed.
	35856	29344	Transfers now sends the correct unit conversion value
			to the database when an item uses a unit consisting of
			multiple base units.
	35855	29342	Purchase Order export no longer flags invoices that
			were not exported to the CSV file as exported.
	35718	29246	Users can now book the waste from items with item
			numbers greater than 2,147,483,647 without any error.
	35698	29231	Orders created using the Task Menu are now sent to the
			vendors through e-mail when booked.
	35666	29211	Inactive items are no longer re-activated when users
			attempt to delete a deactivated item.
	35664	29210	Major Groups search tool now functions as expected.
			Previously, clicking the magnifying glass icon did not
			return any search results.
	35662	29209	User can now add or link items without prices to a
			Vendor Purchase catalog.
	35648	29207	Users can now create end of day inventories for past
			business dates with an already booked end of day
			inventory.
	35640	29203	Users can now edit and save newly created tax records
			without an error. Previously, if a user edited a newly
			created tax record without exiting the page, an error
			message was shown when attempting to save that
			change.
	35639	29202	myinventory now supports two digit Order Types.
	35563	29140	The Recipe field in Recipes > Menu Item Linking is now
			automatically populated if the item is not already
			linked to the selected recipe.
	35562	29139	Selecting the QTY field in the Edit Linking dialog box
			after selecting a menu item not linked to any recipe or
			inventory item no longer returns an error as the Recipe
			field now automatically populated with the currently
			loaded recipe.
	35544	29115	A more descriptive warning message is now shown
			when users attempt to delete count cycles assigned to
			tasks.

Product	CRID	TPID	Description
	35532	29103	Clicking Add Items no longer saves changes to Booked
			Receipts.
	35516	29099	The value of a delivery note no longer changes without
			booking the document.
	35512	29098	Mobile devices for locations without cost centers now
			appear in the Mobile Device Management details page.
	35490	29079	An error message no longer appears when replacing ingredients of the same base unit.
	35461	29058	Users must now first save the inventory list before
			defining the visibility criteria.
	35358	28978	The Item Activity Report now shows the transactions of
			items with only sales for a past business date.
	35130	28711	Categories assigned to the original recipe are now
			preserved when updating the recipe version.
	35037	28583	The Book Invoices to B/O job now closes invoices with
			altered VAT percentages when the Global setting
			FIBUEXPORT in Configuration   RECHNUNG and the
			option Do not send to A/P in Master Data   Vendor are
	24040	•0••	selected.
	34948	28336	Users can now change the destination cost center of
			booked delivery notes from the Suspended Invoice
	24004	20000	module.
	34884	28099	The Receiving and the Stock on Hand modules now
			equally divide the shipment cost between the numbers
			of items in the receipt. Previously, the entire shipment cost was added to the unit price of each item.
	34806	27860	Purchase orders with Polish text e-mailed in ASCII
	34000	27000	format now render properly.
	34734	27679	Item groups in Order/Receipt list are now translated to
	01,01	2,0,,	the language defined in Master Data Translation.
	34692	27595	When a cost center is deleted from the C/S Filter, the
			next cost center on the list is now highlighted.
mylabor	36052	87080	The existing BG Code no longer fails to validate when
,			an employee is transferred to a new Home Store.
	35927	81355	Shifts scheduled for the day that Daylight Saving Time
			(DST) comes into effect no longer get set back an hour.
	35806	79134	Premium Pay now calculates when the Labor Week
			Start Day is set to Monday and the employee time
			punch is between 12 a.m. and the configured Start
			Labor Hour.
	35408	66207	Locations that use Historical Seed Data from other
			locations now show the accurate forecast values for
			next week in Advanced View.
	35335	63777	Resaving an employee's record no longer causes the
			user's organization level to default back to the Home
			Store. (Formerly SCR 6551)

Product	CRID	TPID	Description
	35166	57036	mylabor no longer creates time punches where the
			clock out time is earlier than the clock in time for
			employees that clock in between the automatic clock
			out time and the Start Labor Hour when Auto-clock-out
			is before the Start Labor Hour.
	35165	56976	You can now change the Net Sales of any day part to
			zero in Advanced Forecast View without any error.
			Additionally, reverting now successfully returns all
	.=	-0101	sales to their original values.
	35089	53186	Employees transferred to a new Home Store can no
			longer log into back office applications at the old Home
			Store once the old Home Store job assignments become
	25052	E1017	inactive
	35052	51017	The Employee Upload Interface now verifies that the
			defined Hire Date is before the job rate's Effective From Date prior to processing.
	35050	50625	Staffing Requirements now accurately schedules shifts
	33030	30023	that begin between midnight and the start of day if the
			Store Work Hours are configured to begin after
			midnight.
	35032	49439	A more descriptive message is now shown when users
			attempt to create a Percentage Value or Amount Value
			event that overlaps with an Absolute Value event.
	35028	49380	Terminating a salaried employee now deletes all job
		49381	codes including those scheduled to take effect after the
			employee's termination date.
	35021	49119	Fields excluded from the HR Template are no longer
			visible in Employee Administration.
	34984	48114	You can now select a date range for generating the
			Employee Record Change Tracking Report.
	34881	45138	Staffing Admin now only shows Job Category Masters
			that are created in the Human Resources
			Administration module. It no longer shows Job
	25060	00066	Category Masters created in the Warehouse module.
	35969	82966	When Include salaried employees in labor costs and
			Allocate Salaried Labor To Defined Pay Period options
			are selected, mylabor now accurately calculates
			overtime across monthly and semi-monthly pay periods calendars.
	35744	78613	You can now save employee time card punches after
	007 44	70010	modifying Child Labor Laws without any error.
	35709	74761	The Forecast Approval/Rejection page no longer times
	22.07	, _,	out when attempting to view forecasts for all locations
			in an organization with a large number of locations